
The Legislature of Rockland County 

MICHAEL M. GRANT 
Legislator- District 2 

Chair, Budget & Finance Committee 
2nd Vice Chair - Planning & Public Works Committee 

ROLLCALL 

AGENDA 
BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13,2016 
7:15PM 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES: 8/2/16(JOINT PPW & B&F MTG), 8116116 & 8/30/16 (JOINT PPW & B&F MTG) 

1. BONDS/PUBLIC WORKS MATTER: 

lPPW) REF# 5906 (A) APPROVING ADDmONAL PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 FROM NRP 
GROUP FOR THE INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF ODOR CONTROL 
SYSTEMS AT VARIOUS PUMP STATIONS FOR ROCKLAND COUNTY SEWER 
DISTRICT N0.1 IN THE ADDmONAL AMOUNT OF $122,265 FOR THE PERIOD 
FROM DECEMBER 1, 2016 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2017 WITH ONE (1) 
ADDmONAL ONE (1) YEAR OPTION TERM FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $489,060 FROM THE COMMENCEMENT DATE DECEMBER 1, 2013 
THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2017 WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL 
PURCHASE ORDER UNDER RFB-RC-2012-025 [DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL 
SERVICES- DIVISION OF PURCHASING] ($489,060) 
(PAUL J. BRENNAN, DIRECTOR, DGS PURCHASING) 
DL#: 2016-03065 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

(B) APPROVING ADDmONAL PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 FROM FRANK 
STEVENS & SONS ROOFING, INC. FOR ROOFING SYSTEMS - SERVICE, 
MAINTENANCE; REPAIR AND INSTALLATION FOR ROCKLAND COUNTY SEWER 
DISTRICT NO. 1 AND THE DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES IN THE 
ADDmONAL AMOUNT OF $100,000 FOR THE PERIOD FROM NOVEMBER 4, 
2016 THROUGH NOVEMBER 3, 2017 WITH ONE (1) REMAINING ONE (1) YEAR 
OPTION FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $474,870.18 FROM THE 
COMMENCEMENT DATE NOVEMBER 4, 2013 THROUGH NOVEMBER 3, 2017 
WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER UNDER 
RFB-RC-2013-082 [DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES - DIVISION OF 
PURCHASING] ($474,870.18) 
(PAUL J, BRENNAN, DIRECTOR, DGS PURCHASING) 
DL#: 2016-03064 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Rockland County Legislature -11 New Hempstead Road- New City, New York 10956 -Tel: (845) 638-5100 
Visit us: http://rocklandgov.com/departments/county-legislature/ 

Like us on Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/rockleg 



Budget & Finance Agenda 
September 13,2016 
Page2of5 

(C) APPROVING ADDITIONAL PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 FROM HAUSER 
BROTHERS, INC. IN AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $250,000 FOR THE PERIOD 
FROM JUNE 20, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 19, 2017 FOR PLUMBING, MECHANICAL, 
PIPING WORK & MATERIALS FOR USE BY ROCKLAND COUNTY SEWER 
DISTRICT #1 AND THE DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES FOR A TOTAL 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,400,000 FROM THE COMMENCEMENT DATE JUNE 
20, 2013 THROUGH JUNE 19, 2017 WITH ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR 
OPTION TERM WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE 
ORDER UNDER RFB-RC-2013-023 [DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES -
DIVISION OF PURCHASING] ($1,400,000) 
(PAUL J. BRENNAN, DIRECTOR, DGS PURCHASING) 
DL#: 2016-03063 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

2PPW) REF# 2946 AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CLERK TO THE LEGISLATURE TO 
ADVERTISE FOR BIDS- FOR A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE LOWLAND 
HILL EMBANKMENT STABILIZATION PROJECT IN THE TOWN OF STONY POINT 
UNDER CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 7112 [DRAINAGE AGENCY] 
(CHARLES H. VEZZETTI, CHAIRMAN, DRAINAGE AGENCY) 
DL#: 2016-02965 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

3PPW) REF# 9252 (A) REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR THE REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO 
COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY UNDER CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- FACILITIES MANAGEMENT] 
(ROBERT H. GRUFFI, DIRECTOR, FACILITIES MANAGEMENT) 
DL#: 2016-02861 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

(B) AMENDING THE 2016 ADOPTED CAPITAL BUDGET FOR THE REDUNDANT 
BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY IN THE 
ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $1,500,000 FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $7,500,000 
UNDER CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479 (DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
FACILITIES MANAGEMENT) ($7,500,000) 
(ROBERT H. GRUFFI, DIRECTOR, FACILITIES MANAGEMENT) 
DL#: 2016-03162 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

(C) AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CLERK TO THE LEGISLATURE TO 
ADVERTISE TO RE-BID FOR THE REDESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY CAPITAL 
PROJECT NO. 1479 [DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES - FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT] 
(ROBERT H. GRUFFI, DIRECTOR, FACILITIES MANAGEMENT) 
DL#: 2016-02859 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 



Budget & Finance Agenda 
September 13,2016 
Page3 of5 

{D) BOND RESOLUTION OF THE . COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK, 
AUTHORIZING FINANCING FOR COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION OF A BUILDING TO 
HOUSE THE REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO COMMUNICATIONS 
FACILITY TO BE LOCATED ON THE NEW CITY GOVERNMENT CENTER CAMPUS 
(CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479), STATING THE ESTIMATED MAXIMUM COST OF 
SUCH PROJECT IS $1,500,000, APPROPRIATING SAID AMOUNT THEREFOR, 
AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $1,500,000 BONDS OF THE COUNTY TO 
FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION. 
(ROBERT H. GRUFFI, P.E.LEED AP, DIRECTOR, GS-FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT) 
DL#: 2016-02862 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

{E) AUTHORIZING THE ADVANCE OF GENERAL FUND MONIES IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,500,000 FOR THE REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO 
COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY UNDER CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES - FACILffiES MANAGEMENT] 
($1,500,000) 
(ROBERT H. GRUFFI, DIRECTOR, FACILITIES MANAGEMENT) 
DL#: 2016-02888 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

2. GRANTS/DONATIONS: 

3. BUDGET ITEMS: 

3A) REF# 2973 

NONE 

AMENDING THE 2016 BUDGET BY APPROVING THE ACCEPTANCE OF 
ADDITIONAL FUNDS FROM THE NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF ALCOHOL 
AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES (OASAS) TO THE ROCKLAND COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,895 [NCTD] AND 
FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $238,420 FOR THE CALENDAR 
YEAR 2016 WHICH ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO COMMUNITY AWARENESS 
NETWORK FOR A DRUG-FREE LIFE AND ENVIRONMENT, INC. (C.A.N.D.L.E.) 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTNE TO EXECUTE ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THE APPLICABLE CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT [DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH] ($238,420) 
(MICHAEL LEITZES, COMMISSIONER, MENTAL HEALTH) 
DL#: 2016-02634 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF MULTI-SERVICE COMMITTEE 

4. AUTHORIZATIONS: NONE 



Budget & Finance Agenda 
September 13,2016 
Page4of5 

5. CONTRACTS/AGREEMENTS: 

SA) REF# 9505 

SB) REF# 9019 

SC) REF# 9505 

APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH VENTURE FOUNDATION, LTD. TO 
PROVIDE A VEHICLE FOR SELF-ADVOCACY AND SUPPORTIVE PEER 
RELATIONSHIPS THROUGH PARTICIPANT FORUM AND SOCIAL 
RECREATION ACTIVITIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $48,146 FOR THE PERIOD 
FROM JANUARY I, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2016 WITH THE OPTION 
TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (I) YEAR OPTION TERMS AND 
TRANSFERRING THE FUNDS NECESSARY TO PAY FOR THIS AGREEMENT 
FROM DEPARTMENT NO. CA-8031 TO DEPARTMENT NO. DMH-M999 
[DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH] ($48,146) 
(MICHAEL LEITZES, COMMISSIONER, MENTAL HEALTH) 
DL#: 2016-02791 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF MULTI-SERVICE COMMITTEE 

APPROVING AN INTERMUNICIPAL HOST SITE AGREEMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $4,800 BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND ON BEHALF OF 
ITS YOUTH BUREAU AND THE VILLAGE OF HAVERSTRAW FOR THE 
ROCKLAND CONSERVATION AND .SERVICE CORPS ENVIRONMENTAL 
CORPS PROGRAM FROM JUNE I, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE THE 
INTERMUNICIP AL HOST SITE AGREEMENT [YOUTH BUREAU] ($4,800) 
(MARIANNE MCCARNEY, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, YOUTH BUREAU) 
DL#: 2016-03061 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF MULTI-SERVICE COMMITTEE 

APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH ROCKLAND IRISH AMERICAN CULTURAL 
CENTER TO PROVIDE PROGRAMS FOR SENIOR CITIZENS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$13,747 FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY I, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 
WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (I) YEAR OPTION 
TERMS AND TRANSFERRING THE FUNDS NECESSARY TO PAY FOR THIS 
AGREEMENT FROM DEPARTMENT NO. 7568 TO DEPARTMENT NO. 6772 [OFFICE FOR 
THE AGING] ($13,747) 
(T. CARDOZA-IZQUIERDO, DIRECTOR, OFFICE FOR THE AGING) 
DL#: 2016-03099 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF MULTI-SERVICE COMMITTEE 

6. ALLOCATION/RECLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS: 

6A) REF# 8347 

6B) REF# 9209 

6C)REF#3179 

ESTABLISHING ONE POSITION AND ABOLISHING ONE POSITION IN THE 
DEPARTMENT OF LAW 
(JOAN M. SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL# 2016-02910 

ESTABLISHING TWO RELIEF POSITIONS IN THE BOARD OF ELECTIONS 
(JOAN M. SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL# 2016-02911 

ESTABLISHING THREE RELIEF POSITIONS IN THE ROCKLAND COUNTY YOUTH 
BUREAU 
(JOAN M. SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL# 2016-02935 



Budget & Finance Agenda 
September 13,2016 
Page 5 of5 

6D) REF# 9097 

6E) REF# 3977 

6F) REF# 8568 

ESTABLISHING AND ABOLISHING POSITIONS IN THE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL 
HEALTH 
(JOAN M. SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL# 2016-02915 . 

ESTABLISHING THREE POSITIONS AND ABOLISHING TWO POSITIONS IN THE OFFICE 
OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (NO LOCAL SHARE) 
(JOAN M. SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL# 2016-02911 

ESTABLISHING AND ABOLISHING POSITIONS AND IMPLEMENTING THE 
REALLOCATIONS OF TWO POSITIONS IN THE DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL 
(JOAN SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL# 2016-02864 

DEFERRED AT 8130116 B&F 

7. BIDS: NONE 

8. TRANSFER OF FUNDS/OTHERS: NONE 

9. TAX ITEMS: NONE 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 

11. LOCAL LAWS/HOME RULES: NONE 

12. PRESENT A TIONSIDISCUSSIONS: NONE 

13. MISCELLANEOUS: NONE 

14. RECEIVE & FILE: NONE 

15. CORRESPONDENCE/REVIEW AND DISCUSSION: NONE 

B&F AGN 091316JS 

"The Rockland County Legislature is committed to full compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. To that end, 
the Legislature is committed to creating an accessible environment for all. To request accommodations that you may 
require, please call Damaris Alvarez at 845-638-5248 (845-708-7899 for TTY/TOO). Please request these 
accommodations three (3) days in advance so that we can seek to meet your needs." 



Introduced by: Referral No. 5 a, 1J{p {A) 

RESOLUTION NO. . OF 2016 
APPROVING ADDITIONAL PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

FROM NRP GROUP 
FOR THE INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF ODOR CONTROL 

SYSTEMS AT VARIOUS PUMP.STATIONS 
FOR ROCKLAND COUNTY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 1 

IN THE ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $122,265 
FOR THE PERIOD FROM DECEMBER 1, 2016 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2017 

WITH ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR OPTION TERM 
FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $489,060 FROM THE 

COMMENCEMENT DATE DECEMBER 1, 2013 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30,2017 
WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER 

UNDER RFB-RC-2012-025 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- DIVISION OF PURCHASING] 

($489,060) 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 171 of2014, the Legislature ofRockland County approved 
purchases in excess of $100,000 from NRP Group 9131 East 37th Street, North Wichita, Kansas· 
67226, for the installation and operation of odor control systems at various pump stations for 
Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 under RFB-RC-2012-025 in an amount not to exceed 
$122,265 for the period from December 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014, with four (4) 
additional one (1) year options terms; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 538 of2014, the Legislature of Rockland County approved 
additional purchases in excess of$1 00,000 from NRP Group, 9131 East 37'h Street, North Wichita, 
Kansas 67226, for the installation and operation of odor control systems at various pump stations 
for.Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 under RFB-RC-2012-025 in the additional amount of 
$122,265 for the period from December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2015, with three (3) 
additional one (1) year option terms, for a total amount not to exceed $244,530 from the 
commencement date December 1, 2013 through November 30, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 489 of2015, the Legislature of Rockland County approved 
additional purchases in excess of$1 00,000 from NRP Group, 9131 East 37th Street, North Wichita, 
Kansas 67226, for the installation and operation of odor control systems at various pump stations 
for Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 under RFB-RC-2012-025 in the additional amount of 
$122,265 for the period from December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2016, with two (2) 
additional one (1) year option terms, for a total amount not to exceed $366,795 from the 
commencement date December 1, 2013 through November 30, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, These services are provided to treat odors and control Hydrogen Sulfide 
(H2S) levels in the District lines; and 



WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing recommends that the County Executive and the 
Legislature of Rockland County approve additional purchases in excess of $100,000 from NRP 
Group, 9131 East 37th Street, North Wichita, Kansas 67226, for the installation and operation of 
the odor control systems at various pump stations for Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 under 
RFB-RC-2012-025 in the additional amount of $122,265 for the period from December 1, 2016 
through November 30,2017, with one (1) additional one (1) year option term, for a total amount 
not to exceed $489,060 from the commencement date from December 1, 2013 through November 
30, 2017; and 

· WHEREAS, All purchases will be initiated by formal purchase order, subject to the 
approval of the Director of Purchasing; and 

WHEREAS, Sufficient funding for these purchases is provided for in the 2016 adopted 
budget of the Rockland County .Sewer District No. 1, and is contingent upon 2017 budget 
appropriations; and 

WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to approve the 
"execution of all contracts in excess of $100,000 entered into by the County"; and 

WHEREAS, The 
resolution, now, therefore, be it 

of the Legislature have met, considered and approved this 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves additional 
purchases in excess of$100,000 from NRP Group, 9131 East 37th Street, North Wichita, Kansas 
67226, for the installation and operation of the odor control systems at various pump stations for 
Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 under RFB-RC-2012-025 in the additional amount of 
$122,265 for the period from December 1, 2016 through November 30, 2017, with one (1) 
additional one (1) year option terms, for a total amount not to exceed $489,060 from the 
commencement date December 1, 2013 through November 30, 2017; and be it further 

RESOLVED That all purchases shall be made by formal purchase order, subject to the 
approval of the Director of Purchasing; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That sufficient funding for these purchases is provided for in the 2016 
adopted budget of Rockland County Sewer District No. 1, and is contingent upon 2017 budget 
appropriations. 

LHG:dc 
2016-03065 
8-30-16 

! 
I 
i 
I 
l 



Introduced by: ·, ' ; ,~' 

Referral No.5 ~{J{o (PJ) 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING ADDITIONAL PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

FROM FRANK STEVENS & SONS ROOFING, INC. 
FOR ROOFING SYSTEMS- SERVICE, MAINTENANCE, 

REP AIR AND INSTALLATION FOR ROCKLAND COUNTY SEWER DISTRICT NO. 1 
AND THE DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 

IN THE ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $100,000 FOR THE PERIOD 
FROM NOVEMBER 4, 2016 THROUGH NOVEMBER 3, 2017 WITH ONE (1) 

REMAINING ONE (1) YEAR OPTION FOR A 
TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $474,870.18 FROM 

THE COMMENCEMENT DATE NOVEMBER 4, 2013 THROUGH NOVEMBER 3, 2017 
WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER 

UNDER RFB-RC-2013-082 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- DIVISION OF PURCHASING] 

($474,870.18) 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing requested bids for roofing systems - service, 
maintenance, repair and installation for Rockland County Sewer District No; 1 and the Department 
of General Services for the period from November 4, 2013 through November 3, 2014, with four 
(4) additional one (1) year options under RFB-RC-2013-082 (the "RFB"); and 

WHEREAS, Based upon an evaluation of the bids, Frank Stevens & Sons Roofing, Inc., 
56 Smith Clove Road, Central Valley, New York 10917, was determined to be the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing awarded a contract to Frank Stevens & Sons 
Roofing, Inc., 56 Smith Clove Road, Central Valley, New York 10917, in an amount not to exceed 
$100,000 for the period from November 4, 2013 through November 3, 2014, with four (4) 
additional one (1) year options; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 408 of20 14, the Legislature of Rockland County approved 
purchases in excess of$100,000 from Frank Stevens & Sons Roofing, Inc., 56 Smith Clove Road, 
Central Valley, New York 10917, for roofing systems - service, maintenance, repair and 
installation for Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 and the Department of General Services 
under RFB-RC-2013-082 in an amount not to exceed $199,870.17 from the commencement date 
November 4, 2013 through November 3, 2015, with three (3) additional one (1) year options; and 

r 
I 
' ' 

t 
I 

I 
r 

t 



WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 15 of2015, the Legislature of Rockland County approved 
purchases in excess of$100,000 from Frank Stevens & Sons Roofing, Inc., 56 Smith Clove Road, 
Central Valley, New York 10917, for roofing systems - service, maintenance, repair and 
installation for Rockland County Sewer District No. I and the Department of General Services 
under RFB-RC-2013-082 in an amount not to exceed $324,870.18 from the commencement date 
November 4, 2013 through November 3, 2015, with three (3) additional one (I) year options; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 488 of2015, the Legislature of Rockland County approved 
purchases in excess of$100,000 from Frank Stevens & Sons Roofing, Inc., 56 Smith Clove Road, 
Central Valley, New York I 0917, for roofmg systems - service, maintenance, repair and 
installation for Rockland County Sewer District No. I and the Department of General Services 
under RFB-RC-2013-082 in the additional amount of$50,000 for the period from November 4, 
2015 through November 3, 2016 for a total amount not to exceed $374,870.18 from the 
commencement date November 4, 2013 through November 3, 2016, with two (2) additional one 
(I) year options; and 

WHEREAS, To date the total encumbrances against this contract equal $371,215.33; and 

WHEREAS, Due to the nature of the work performed under this contract and the need to 
have the ability to expedite emergency repairs, it is necessary to request an additional $1 00,000 
for work perfonned during this term commencing on November 4, 2016 through November 3, 
2017;and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing recommends that the County Executive and the 
Legislature of Rockland County approve additional purchases in excess of $100,000 from Frank 
Stevens & Sons Roofing, Inc., 56 Smith Clove Road, Central Valley, New York 10917, for roofing 
systems- service, maintenance, repair and installation for Rockland County Sewer District No. I 
and the Department of General Services under RFB-RC-2013-082 in an additional amount of 
$100,000 for the period from November 4, 2016 through November 3, 2017, with one (!) 
additional one (I) year option, for a total amount not to exceed $474,870.18 from the 
commencement date November 4, 2013 through November 3, 2017; and 

· WHEREAS, All purchases shall be initiated by formal purchase order, subject to the 
approval of the Director of Purchasing; and 

WHEREAS, Sufficient funding for these purchases exists in the 2016 Budgets of Rockland 
County Sewer District No. I and the Department of General Services and is contingent upon 2017 
budgetappropriations;and 

' 
WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to approve the 

"execution of all contracts in excess of $100,000 entered into by the County"; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, considered and 
approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

i 
f 

i 



RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves additional 
purchases in excess of $100,000 from Frank Stevens & Sons Roofing, Inc., 56 Smith Clove Road, 
Central Valley, New York 10917, for roofmg systems - service, maintenanae, repair and 
installation for Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 and the Department of General Services 
under RFB-RC-2013-082 in an additional amount of $100,000 for the period from November 4, 
2016 through November 3, 2017, with one(!) additional one (1) year option, for a total amount 
not to exceed $474,870.18 from the commencement date November 4, 2013 through November 3, 
2017, with all purchases to be made by formal purchase order, subject to the approval of the 
Director of Purchasing; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That sufficient funding for these purchases exists in the 2016 Budgets of 
Rockland County Sewer District No. 1 and the Department of General Services and is contingent 
upon 2017 budget appropriations. 

LHG:dc 
2016-03064 
8-30-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. 590b(t!) ·-····" 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING ADDITIONAL PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

FROM HAUSER BROTHERS, INC. 
IN AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $250,000 

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JUNE 20, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 19, 2017 
FOR PLUMBING, MECHANICAL, PIPING WORK & MATERIALS 

FOR USE BY ROCKLAND COUNTY SEWER DISTRICT #1 
AND THE DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 

FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,400,000 
FROM THE COMMENCEMENT DATE 

JUNE 20,2013 THROUGH JUNE 19,2017 
WITH ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR OPTION TERM 

WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER 
UNDER RFB-RC-2013-023 

[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES -DIVISION OF PURCHASING] 
($1,400,000) 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 407 of2013 the Legislature of Rockland County 
approved purchases in excess of $100,000 from Hauser Brothers, Inc., for plumbing, 
mechanical, piping work & materials for use by Rockland County Sewer District #I and 
the Department of General Services under RFB-RC-20 13-023 in an amount not to exceed 
$450,000 for the period from June 20, 2013 through June 19, 2014 with four (4) additional 
one (1) year options terms; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 489 of2014 the Legislature of Rockland County 
approved purchases in excess of $100,000 from Hauser Brothers, Inc., for plumbing, 
mechanical, piping work & materials for use by Rockland County Sewer District #1 and 
the Department of General Services under RFB-RC-2013-023 in an additional amount of 
$250,000 for the period from June 20, 2014 through June 19, 2015 for a total amount not 
to exceed $700,000 from the commencement date June 20, 2013 through June 19, 2015 
with three (3) additional one (1) year options terms; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 271 of2015 the Legislature of Rockland County 
approved purchases in excess of $100,000 from Hauser Brothers, Inc., for plumbing, 
mechanical, piping work & materials for use by Rockland County Sewer District #1 and 
the Department of General Services under RFB-RC-2013-023 in an additional amount of 
$200,000 for the period from June 20, 2015 through June 19, 2016 for a total amount not 
to exceed $900,000 from the commencement date June 20, 2013 through June 19, 2016 
with two (2) additional one (1) year options terms; and 



WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 292 of 2016 the Legislature of Rockland County 
approved purchases in excess of $100,000 from Hauser Brothers, Inc., for plumbing, 
mechanical, piping work & materials for use by Rockland County Sewer District #1 and 
the Department of General Services under RFB-RC-2013-023 in an additional amount of 
$250,000 for the period from June 20, 2016 through June 19, 2017 for a total amount not 
to exceed $1,150,000 from the commencement date June 20, 2013 through June 19,2017 
with one (1) additional one (1) year options term; and 

WHEREAS, Through August 4, 2016, the amount of $1,105,085.42 has been 
encumbered against the contr!lct; and 

WHEREAS, Due to the nature of the work performed under this contract and the 
need to have the ability to expedite emergency repairs, it is necessary to increase the total 
not to exceed amount of this contract; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing recommends to the County Executive and 
the Legislature of Rockland County that the County approve purchases in excess of 
$100,000 from Hauser Brothers, Inc., for plumbing, mechanical, piping work and materials 
for use by Rockland County Sewer District #1 and the Department of General Services 
under RFB-RC-2013-023 in the additional amount of $250,000 for the period from June 
20, 2016 through June 19, 2017 for a total amount not to exceed $1,400,000 from the 
commencement date June 20, 2013 through June 19,2017, with the option to renew for 
one (1) additional one (1) year term; and 

WHEREAS, All purchases shall be initiated by formal purchase order, subject to 
the approval of the Director of Purchasing; and 

WHEREAS, Sufficient funding for these purchases is provided for in the 2016 
Budget of Rockland County Sewer District #I and the Department of General Services and 
is contingent on 2017 budget appropriations; and 

WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to approve the 
"execution of all contracts in excess of $100,000 entered into by the County"; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, considered 
and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves purchases 
in excess of$1 00,000 from Hauser Brothers, Inc., 17 Schoolhouse Road, Orangeburg, New 
York 1 0962, for plumbing, mechanical, piping work and materials for use by Rockland 
County Sewer District #1 and the Department of General Services under RFB-RC-2013-
023 in the additional amount of $250,000 for the period from June 20, 2016 through June 
19, 2017, for a total amount not to exceed $1,400,000 from the commencement date June 
20, 2013 through June 19, 2017, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) 



year term, and authorizes all purchases to be made by formal purchase order, subject to the 
approval of the Director of Purchasing; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That sufficient funding for these purchases is provided for in the 20 I 6 
Budgets of Rockland County Sewer District # 1 and the Department of General Services, 
and is contingent upon 20 I 7 budget appropriations. 

LHG:dc 
2016-03063 
8-30-16 



Introduced by: r·; .• ·' .~.-, ... , ;-;~ r·r:; "IT I .. ' , .... • ' I - I . ;; ' ' ''' ::.,' J ' Referral No. J 9'/IP 
, _ _.., \.,__.,__ .........r;.....! 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CLERK TO THE LEGISLATURE 

TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS-
FOR A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE 

LOWLAND HILL EMBANKMENT STABILIZATION PROJECT 
IN THE TOWN OF STONY POINT 

UNDER CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 7112 
[DRAINAGE AGENCY] 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 213 of2012, the Legislature of Rockland County created 
Capital Account No. 7112 for the repair of various drainage projects which were caused by 
Hurricane Irene in 2011; and 

WHEREAS, The Lowland Hill Embankment Stabilization Project in the ToWn of Stony 
Point is necessary as the existing embankment has failed; and 

WHEREAS, The Drainage Agency has since been monitoring the condition of the 
embankment until the structure is replaced; and 

WHEREAS, The scope of services for the project shall include, but not be limited to, 
repairing the existing failed embankment stabilization 200 feet long using extra heavy stone fill 
with the project limits of the Cedar Pond Brook at Lowland Hill Road in the Town of Stony Point; 
and 

WHEREAS, The Chairman of the Drainage Agency recommends that the Legislature of 
Rockland County authorize and direct the Clerk to the Legislature to advertise for bids for a 
construction contract for the Lowland Hill Embankment Stabilization Project in the Town of Stony 
Point pursuant to plans and specifications prepared by the Rockland County Drai11age Agency; 
and 

WHEREAS, This pr0ject has been identified as potentially being reimbursable by FEMA; 
and 

WHEREAS, Funding for this project is provided in Capital Project Account No. 7112; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, 
considered and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

f 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I , __ -

I 

I 
I 
I 

i 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 



Introduced by ReferralNo. 9J5~ (.A) 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR THE 

REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO 
COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY UNDER 

CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- FACILITIES MANA(>'EMENT] 

WHEREA,S, By Resolution No. 502 of2014, the Legislature of Rockland County 
authorized its Clerk to advertise for bids for the Redundant Backup Public Safety Radio 
Conununications Facility under Capital Project No. 1479 pursuant to plans and 
specifications prepared by Degenshein Architects, Nyack, New York; OLA Consulting 
Engineers, Hawthorne, New York and Brooker Engineering, Suffern, New York; and 

WHEREAS, On April2, 2015, thirteen (13) bids were received and publicly opened 
for general construction, plumbing, mechanical and electrical contracting on this project, 
and · 

WHEREAS, All of the bids received exceeded the available project funding; and 

WHEREAS, Based on the foregoing, the Director of Facilities Management 
reconunends the rejection of all bids received for general construction, plumbing, 
mechanical and electrical contracting, and 

WHEREAS, the 
Legislature have met, considered and 
now, therefore be it 

Committees of the 
approved this resolution, 

RESOLVED, that the Legislature of Rockland County hereby rejects all bids 
received and publicly opened on April2, 2015, for the Redundant Backup Public Safety 
Radio Communications Facility under Capital Project No. 1479 pursuant to plans and 
specifications prepared by Degenshein Architects, Nyack, New York; OLA Consulting 
Engineers, Hawthorne, New York and Brooker Engineering, Suffern, New York. 

LHG:dc 
2016-02861 
8-29-16 



Introduced by: 
UJ r;J m fY rr 

Referral No. 9 d.bJ.£PJ) 
RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

AMENDING THE 2016 ADOPTED CAPITAL BUDGET 
FOR THE REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC 

SAFETY RADIO COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY 
IN THE ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $1,500,000 

FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $7,500,000 
UNDER CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479 

(DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- FACILITIES MANAGEMENT) 
($7,500,000) . 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 262 of2014, the Legislature of Rockland County 
authorized Capital Project 1479 for the Redundant Backup Public Safety Radio 
Communications Facility, in the amount of$6,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, Those funds have been used for the purchase of all communications 
equipment for the redundant backup radio room and initial design services; and 

WHEREAS, The Adopted 2016 Capital Budget estimated the total cost of this 
Project to be $6,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, At this time an additional $1,500,000 is needed to provide sufficient 
funds for the final design and construction of the building structure; and 

WHEREAS, With this additional fimding, the bonded amount of this Project will 
be $7 ,500,000; and· 

WHEREAS, The Redundant Backup Public Safety Radio Communications Facility 
is required to ensure continuous uninterrupted operation of the Public Safety Radio 
Communications System in the event the main Radio Communications Facilities becomes 
inoperative; and · ' 

WHEREAS, The Public Radio Communications Facility provides interoperable 
radio communications between Police, Fire, EMS and other law enforcement agencies; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Facilities Management has advised the County 
Executive and the Legislature of Rockland County that in order to solicit bids for this 
Project, suffiCient ftmding must be available; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, 
considered and approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

i : 

r II 
I I 

I 
I 

r 
i 

. I I i 

I 
I~ 
i I 
I i 
! I 
i I 
I 
I 



RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves an 
amendment to the 2016 Adopted Capital Budget to increase funding in the total amount of 
$1,500,000 for the Redundant Backup Public Safety Radio Communications Facility under 
Capital Project No. 1479; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Commissioner of Finance is hereby authorized to increase 
the following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

Increase Approp. Acct: 
H1479 

Increase Est. Rev. Acct.: 

H5710 

LHG:dc 
2016-03162 
9-8-16 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND- 2016 

Redundant Backup Public Safety 
Radio Communications Facility 

Proceeds from Bonds 

1,500,000 

1,500,000 

i i 

I 

J 

I 

I 
1 I 
I 

I 

f 
I 
I 

I 



Introduced by: Referral No. 9 ~ S ~ lfJ) 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 

CLERK TO THE LEGISLATURE TO ADVERTISE TO RE-BID 
FOR THE REDESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY 
CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479 

[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- FACILITIES MANAGEMENT] 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 2p2 of2014, the Legislature of Rockland County 
authorized capital project funds for the redesign and construction of the Redundant 
Backup Public Safety Communications Facility, Capital Project No. 1479; and 

WHEREAS, Plans and specifications for the design and construction of the 
redesign and construction of the Redundant Backup Public Safety Communications 
Facility are being prepared by Degenshein Architects, OLA Consulting Engineers and 
Brooker Engineering; and 

· WHEREAS, The Director of Facilities Management recommends to the County 
Executive and the Legislature of Rockland County that the Clerk to the Legislature be 
authorized and directed to advertise to re-bid; and 

WHEREAS, Capital Project No. 1479 has been authorized in the 2016 Capital 
Budget for this project; and 

WHEREAS, The 
met, considered and 

and' Committees of the Legislature have 
this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby authorizes and 
directs the Clerk to the Legislature to advertise to re-bid for the redesign and construction 
of the Redundant Backup Public Safety Communications Facility, subject to the approval 
of the County Attorney; and be it further 

RESOLVED, Capital Project No. 1479 has been authorized in the 2016 Capital 
Budget for the redesign and construction of the Redundant Backup Public Safety 
Communications Facility. 

LHG/bab 
2015-02859 
8/29116 



RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

BOND RESOLUTION DATED _____ , 2016 

BOND RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK, AUTHORIZING 
FINANCING FOR COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION OF A BUILDING TO HOUSE THE 
REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY TO 
BE LOCATED ON THE NEW CITY GOVERNMENT CENTER CAMPUS (CAPITAL 
PROJECT NO. 1479), STATING THE ESTIMATED MAXIMUM COST OF SUCH PROJECT 
IS $1,500,000, APPROPRIATING SAID AMOUNT THEREFOR, AND AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF $1,500,000 BONDS OF THE COUNTY TO FINANCE SAID 
APPROPRIATION. 

(Adopted) ________ , 2016 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the County Legislature of the County of Rockland, New York, has 

heretofore duly authorized the financing of costs for conununications equipment and initial 

design services for a Redundant Backup Public Safety Radio Communications Facility to be 

located on the New City Government Center Campus, at the estimated maximum cost of 

$6,000,000, which amount was appropriated and bonds authorized to finance such appropriation 

therefor pursuant to Bond Resolution No. 262 of2014 duly adopted on June 2, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate to authorize construction of a building on the 

New City Government Center Campus to house such equipment, and it is necessary to increase 

the appropriation for such capital project by $1,500,000 for estimated construction costs; 

Now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF THE COUNTY OF 

ROCKLAND, NEW YORK (by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the voting 

strength of said Legislature), AS FOLLOWS: 

282316 2890679v1 



Section 1. The County of Rockland, New York (herein called "County"), is 

hereby authorized to continue existing Capital Project No. 1479 for the Department of General 

Services, Facilities Management, consisting of construction of a building to house the Redundant 

Backup Public Safety Radio Communications Facility to be located on the New City 

Government Center Campus, all as more particularly described in the County's 2016 Capital 

Budget, as amended. The estimated maximum cost of said object or purpose, including 

preliminary costs and costs incidental thereto and the financing thereof, is $1,500,000, and said 

amount is hereby appropriated therefor. The plan of financing includes the issuance of 

$1,500,000 bonds of the County herein authorized and any bond anticipation notes issued in 

anticipation of the sale of such bonds to finance said appropriation, and the levy and collection of 

taxes on all the taxable real property in the County to pay the principal of and interest on said 

bonds and notes. 

Section 2. Bonds of the County in the principal amount of$1,500,000 are hereby 

authorized to be issued pursuant to the provisions of the Local Finance Law, constituting Chapter 

33-a of the Consolidated Laws of the State of New York (herein called "Law"), to finance said 

appropriation. 

Section 3. The building to be constructed will be of at least Class "B" 

construction as defined by Section 11.00 a. 11. (b) of the Law, and the period of probable 

usefulness applicable to the specific object or purpose for which said $1,500,000 bonds 

authorized by this resolution are to be issued is twenty-five (25) years. 

Section 4. The County intends to fmance, and the Commissioner of Finance of 

the County is hereby authorized to advance such amounts as are necessary to pay the costs of the 

objects or purposes described in Section 1 hereof prior to the issuance of the bonds or bond 

282316 2890679v1 



anticipation notes authorized out of any available funds of the County, on an interim basis, which 

amounts are reasonably expected to be reimbursed with the proceeds of debt to be incurred by 

the County, pursuant to this Resolution, in the total amount of bonds herein authorized. This 

Resolution is a declaration of official intent adopted pursuant to the requirements of Treasury 

Regulation Section 1.150-2. 

Section 5. Subject to the provisions of this Resolution and of the Law, and 

pursuant to the provisions of §21.00 relative to the authorization of the issuance of bonds with 

substantially level or declining annual debt service, §30.00 relative to the authorization of the 

issuance of bond anticipation notes or the renewals thereof, and of §§50.00, 56.00 to 60.00 and 

168.00 of said Law, the powers and duties of the County Legislature relative to authorizing the 

issuance of any notes in anticipation of the sale of the bonds herein authorized, or the renewals 

thereof, relative to providing for substantially level or declining annual debt service, relative to 

prescribing the terms, form and contents and as to the sale and issuance 'Of the bonds herein 

authorized, and of any notes issued in anticipation of the sale of said bonds or the renewals of 

said notes, and relative to executing agreements for credit enhancement, are hereby delegated to 

the Commissioner of Finance of the County, as the chief fiscal officer of the County. 

Section 6. Each of the bonds authorized by this Resolution and any bond 

anticipation notes issued in anticipation of the sale thereof shall contain the recital of validity 

prescribed by Section 52.00 of said Local Finance Law and said bonds and any notes issued in 

anticipation of said bonds shall be general obligations of the County of Rockland, payable as !O 

both principal and interest by general tax upon all the taxable real property within the County. 

The faith and credit of the County are hereby irrevocably pleqged to the punctual payment of the 

principal of and interest on said bonds and any notes issued in anticipation of the sale of said 

282316 2890679v1 



bonds or the renewals of said notes, and provision shall be made annually in the budgets of the 

County by appropriation for (a) the amortization and redemption of the notes and bonds to 

mature ill such year and (b) the payment of interest to be due and payable in such year. 

Section 7. The validity of the bonds authorized by this Resolution, and of any 

notes issued in anticipation of the sale of said bonds, may be contested only if: 

(a) such obligations are authorized for an object or purpose for which the 
County is not authorized to expend money, or 

(b) the provisions of law which should be complied with at the date of the 
publication of this Resolution, or a summary hereof, are not substantially complied with, 

and an action, suit or proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty days after 

the date of such publication, or 

(c) such obligations are authorized ill violation of the provisions of the 
Constitution. 

Section 8. The Clerk to the Rockland County Legislature is hereby directed to 

publish the foregoing bond resolution, in summary, in the "ROCKLAND JOURNAL NEWS", 

West Nyack, New York and the "ROCKLAND COUNTY TIMES', published by Citizen 

Publishing Corp., Nanuet, New York, each of said newspapers having been designated the 

official newspapers of the County- for such publication, together with a notice in substantially the 

form prescribed in Section 81.00 of the Local Finance Law of the State of New York. 

Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with Section C2.02 of 

the Rockland County Charter. 

* * * 

282316 2890679v1 



The adoption of the foregoing resolution was seconded by Legislator 

_________ and duly put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

The resolution was declared adopted. 

* * * 

282316 2890679v1 



CERTIFICATE 

I, Laurence 0. Toole, Clerk to the Rockland County Legislature, State of New 

York, HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing annexed extract from the minutes of a meeting of 

the Rockland County Legislature duly called and held on , 2016, has been 

compared by me with the original minutes as officially recorded in my office in the Minute Book 

of said County Legislature and is a true, complete and correct copy thereof. 

(SEAL) 

282316 2890679v1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

corporate seal of said County this __ day of 

__ ,2016. 

Clerk to the County Legislature 



NOTICE 

The bond resolution, a summary of which is published herewith, has been adopted by the 
County Legislature on the_ day of 2016, and the validity of the obligations authorized by such 
resolution may be hereafter contested only if such obligations were authorized for an object or purpose for 
which the County of Rockland, New York, is not authorized to expend money or if the provisions of law 
which should have been complied with as of the date of publication of this Notice were not substantially 
complied with, and an action, suit or proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty 
days after the publication of this Notice, or such obligations were authorized in violation of the provisions 
of the Constitution. 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

Laurence 0. Toole 
Clerk to the Legislature 

BOND RESOLUTION DATED---~-' 2016 

BOND RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK, AUTHORIZING 
FINANCING FOR COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION OF A BUILDING TO HOUSE THE REDUNDANT 
BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY TO BE LOCATED ON THE 
NEW CITY GOVERNMENT CENTER CAMPUS (CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 1479), STATING THE 
ESTIMATED MAXIMUM COST OF SUCH PROJECT IS $1,500,000, APPROPRIATING SAID 
AMOUNT THEREFOR, AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $1,500,000 BONDS OF THE 
COUNTY TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION. 

object or purpose: to fmance the cost of construction of a building to house the Redundant Backup 
Public Safety Radio Communications Facility to be located on the New City 
Government Center Campus; all as more particularly descnbed in the County's 
20 I 6 Capital Budget, as amended. 

period of probable usefulness: twenty-five (25) years 

amount of obligations to be issued: $1,500,000 

A complete copy of the Bond Resolution summarized above shall be available for public inspection 
during normal business hours at the office of the Clerk to the Rockland County Legislature, in New City, 
New York. 

Dated: , 2016 
New City, New York 

282316 2890679v1 



EXTRACT OF MINUTES 

Meeting of the County Legislature of 

the County of Rockland, New York 

'2016 

* * * 
A regular/special meeting of the County Legislature of the County of Rockland, 

New York, was held at the Legislative Chambers, in New City, New York, in said County, on 

---:----·• 2016, at _____ o'clock P.M. (Prevailing Time). 

The following Legislators were present: 

There were absent: 

Also present: Laurence 0. Toole, Clerk to the Legislature 

* * * 

Legislator __________ offered the following resolution and 

moved its adoption: 

282316 2890679v1 



Introduced by: Referral No. 9 ~ 5~ (.t) 

RESOLUTION OF 2016 
AUTHORIZING THE 

ADVANCE OF GENERAL FUND MONIES 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,500,000 FOR THE 

REDUNDANT BACKUP PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO COMMUNICATIONS 
FACILITY UNDER CAPITAL PROJECT 1479 

[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- FACILITIES MANAGEMENT] 
($1,500,000) 

WHEREAS, The Department of Finance is in the process of planning a borrowing 
for several capital projects with immediate needs; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 262 of2014, the Legislature of Rockland County 
authorized Capital Project 1479 for the Redundant Backup Public Safety Radio 
Communications Facility, in the amount of $6,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, Those funds have been used for the purchase of ail communications 
equipment for the redundant backup radio room and initial design services; and 

WHEREAS, The Adopted 2016 Capital Budget estimates the total cost of this 
Project to be $12,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, At this time an additional $1,500,000 of the remaining $6,000,000 is 
needed to provide sufficient funds for the fmai design and construction of the building 
structure; and 

WHEREAS, The Redundant Backup Public Safety Radio Communications Facility 
is required to ensure continuous uninterrupted operation of the Public Safety Radio 
Communications System in the event the main Radio Communications Facilities becomes 
inoperative; and 

WHEREAS, The Public Radio Communications Facility provides interoperable 
radio communications between Police, Fire, EMS and other law enforcement agencies; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Facilities Management has advised the County 
Executive and the Legislature of Rockland County that in order to solicit bids for this 
Project, sufficient funding must be available; and 



WHEREAS, The Commissioner of Finance has requested an advance of funds in 
the amount of$1,500,000 for the final design and construction of the building structure for 
this Project; and 

WHEREAS, Pending the financing of this capital project by the issuance of a bond, 
the Commissioner of Finance advises that general fund monies will be required to continue 
this capital project without delay; and 

WHEREAS, Any advance of general fund monies by the Department of Finance 
for this reason shall be made with the understanding that such advance shall be reimbursed 
with interest in the future when the bond financing is undertaken by the County; and 

WHEREAS, The Legislature is authorized to approve the advance of such general 
fund monies for this capital project in accordance with Local Finance Law § 165.1 0; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, considered 
and approved this Resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves the 
advance of general fund monies in the amount of $1,500,000 by the Department of Finance 
to continue this capital project without delay, and that such advance shall be reimbursed 
with interest when bond financing is undertaken by the County. 

LG/dc 
2016-02888 
8-29-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. 29 73 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
AMENDING THE 2016 BUDGET 

BY APPROVING THE ACCEPTANCE OF ADDITIONAL FUNDS 
FROM THE NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF ALCOHOL 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES (OASAS) 
TO THE ROCKLAND COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,895 [NCTD] 
AND FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $238,420 

FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2016 
WHICH ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO COMMUNITY 
AWARENESS NETWORK FOR A DRUG~FREE LIFE 

AND ENVIRONMENT, INC. (C.A.N.D.L.E.) 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

INCLUDING THE APPLICABLE CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
[DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH] 

($238,420) 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 548 of2015, the Legislature ofRockland County 
approved the acceptance of funding from the New York State Office of Alcohol and 
Substance Abuse Services (OASAS) to the Rockland County Department of Mental Health 
(DMH) in the amount of$230,525 for the calendar year 2016, which was to be distributed 
to Community Awareness Network for a Drugfree Life and Environment, Inc. 
(C.A.N.D.L.E.) for narcotics addiction control and prevention programs for children and 
adults; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 72 of 2016, the Legislature approved the 
agreement in excess of $100,000 with C.A.N.D.L.E. for narcotics addiction control and 
prevention programs for children and adults for a total amount not to exceed $230,525 
[NCTD] for the calendar year 20 16; and 

WHEREAS, By this resolution, the Commissioner of the Department of Mental 
Health (RC DMH)has advised the County Executive and the Legislature that OASAS has 
awarded RC DMH additional funding in the amount of $7;895, for a total amount not to 
exceed $238,420, for the calendar year 2016, which is to be distributed to C.A.N.D.L.E.; 
and 

·WHEREAS, The acceptance of these funds will require an amendment to the 
County's 2016 contract with C.A.N.D.L.E.; and 



WHEREAS, No County tax dollars [NCTD] are required to accept these additional 
funds; and 

WHEREAS, It is necessary to appropriate these additional funds to the proper 
accounts; and 

WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to approve the 
"execution of all contracts in excess of$100,000 entered into by the County"; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of this Legislature have met, considered 
and approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves the 
. amendment to the 2016 Budget by accepting additional.funding from the New York State 
Office of Alcohol and Substance Abuse Services (OASAS) to the Rockland County 
Department of Mental Health, in the amount of $7,895, for a total amount not to exceed 
$238,420, for the calendar year 2016, which is to be distributed to Community Awareness 
Network for a Drug-free Life and Enviromnent, Inc. (C.A.N.D.L.E.), and hereby authorizes 
the County Executive to execute all necessary documents related to the acceptance of these 
funds, including the contract amendment with C.A.N.D.L.E., subject to the approval of the 
County Attorney; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That no County tax dollars [NCTD] are required to accept these 
funds; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Commissioner ofFinance hereby is authorized to increase 
the following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

GENERAL FUND- 2016 

Increase Approp. Acct. (Credit): 
A-DMH-4220-E5060 

Increase Est. Rev. Acct. CDebit) 
A-DMH-4220-R3476 

BB:dc 
2016-02634 
7-2(j-16 
Rev. BB 9.7.16 

C.A.N.D.L.E. 

State Aid - OASAS 

,-

7,895 

7,895 



Introduced by: Referrru No. 9 6 o6 
RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITR 
VENTURE FOUNDATION, LTD. 

TO PROVIDE A VEHICLE FOR SELF-ADVOCACY AND 
SUPPORTIVE PEER RELATIONSHIPS THROUGH PARTICIPANT 

FORUM AND SOCIAL RECREATION ACTIVITIES 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $48,146 

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 
WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) 
ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR OPTION TERMS 

AND TRANSFERRING THE FUNDS NECESSARY TO PAY FOR THIS AGREEMENT 
FROM DEPARTMENT NO. CA-8031 TO DEPARTMENT NO. DMH-M999 

[DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH] 
($48,146) 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 548 of2015, the Legislature of Rockland County adopted 
the annuru budget for the County of Rockland for fiscal year 2016 in which funds in the amount 
of$48,146were appropriated for Venture Foundation, Ltd., with offices at 25 Smith Street, Suite 
515, Nanuet, New York 10954, as a contract agency; and · 

WHEREAS, It is the intent of the Legislature, expressed through its amendments to the 
annuru budget for fiscal year 2016, that these funds be used to contract with Venture Foundation, 
Ltd.; and 

WHEREAS, The purpose of the agreement with Venture Foundation, Ltd. is to provide a 
vehicle for self-advocacy and supportive peer relationships through a participant forum and sociru 
recreation activities, and it will be in the amount of $48,146 for the period from January 1, 2016 
through December 31, 2016, with the option to renew for two (2) additionru one (1) year option 
terms; and 

WHEREAS, These services fall within the scope and mi~sion of the Department ofMentru 
Health; and. 

WHEREAS, To fully integrate these services into the Department of Mental Heruth, it is 
appropriate for the Department to work with the contract agency in the performance of the 
agency's obligations under the contract; and 

WHEREAS, The Commissioner of the Department of:M:entru Heruth has requested that the 
funds appropriated for this contract agency be transferred from Department No. CA-8031 to 
Department No. DMH-M999; and 

I 
1 

I 



WHEREAS, Once the funds are transferred, sufficient funding for this agreement will be 
available in the 2016 Budget of the Department of Mental Health, Department No. M999, Object 
of Expense E5010; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, considered and 
this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves the agreement 
with Venture Foundation, Ltd., 25 Smith Street, Suite 515, Nanuet, New York 10954, to provide 
a vehicle for self-advocacy and supportive peer relationships through a participant forum and 
social recreation activities, in the amount of$48,146 for the period from January I, 2016 through 
December 31, 2016 with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year option tenns, and 
hereby authorizes the transfer of funds necessary to pay for this agreement from Department No. 
CA-8031 to Department No. DMH-M999; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Commissioner of Finance hereby is authorized to increase (and 
decrease) the following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

GENERAL FUND 

Decrease Appropriation Account: 
A- CA-803 1 E5010 Contract Agency $48,146 

Increase Appropriation Account: 
A- TRF-9525 E9010 Jnterfund Transfer $48,146 

HOSPITAL FUND 

Increase Appropriation Account: 
EH- DMH-M999 E5010 Contract Agency $48,146 

Increase Estimated Revenue Account: 
EH - UNC-4982 R281 0 Jnterfund Transfer $48,146 

and be it further 

RESOLVED, That once the funds are transferred, sufficient funding for this agreement 
will be available in the 2016 Budget of the Department of Mental Health, Department No. M999, 
Object of Expense E5010. 

BB/bab 
2016-02791 
8/17/16 

m 
~ 
~ 

=f/1 

I 
I 
! 



Introduced by: :----"-.._ -·--. 
i :_ . . '. ,. \ 

._,; 
Referra!No. 91J/9 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING AN INTERMUNICIP AJ, HOST SITE AGREEMENT 

, IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,800· 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND ON BEHALF OF ITS YOUTH BUREAU 

AND THE VILLAGE OF HAVERSTRAW 
FOR THE ROCKLAND CONSERVATION AND SERVICE CORPS 

ENVIRONMENTAL CORPS PROGRAM 
FROM JUNE 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 

AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
TO EXECUTE THE INTERMUNICIP AL HOST SITE AGREEMENT 

[YOUTH BUREAU] 
($4,800) 

WHEREAS, Both the County of Rockland (the "County') and the Village of Haverstraw 
(the "Village") are "municipal corporation[s]" as defined in New York General Municipal Law 
Section 119-n( a); and 

WHEREAS, General Municipal Law Section 119-o(l) provides, in relevant part, that 
"municipal corporations have [the] power to enter into ... agreements for the performance among 
themselves or one for the other of their respective functions, powers and duties on a ... contract 
basis," provided that such agreements are "approved by each participating municipal corporation 
... by a majority vote of the voting strength of its governing body"; and 

WHEREAS, The Rockland Conservation and Service Corps ("RCSC") is a program of the 
Rockland County Youth Bureau which eurolls local municipalities and not-for-profit corporations 
as Host Sites for the Environmental Corps Program (the "Program") which runs from June 1, 2016 
through December 31, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, RCSC members that are placed at Host Sites perform various projects for the 
Host Sites with an emphasis on environmental and beautification work; and 

WHEREAS, The Village wishes to participate in the Program and accept for placement 
RCSC members referred by RCSC pursuant to an interrnunicipal Host Site agreement; and 

WHEREAS, The residents of the County and the Village will benefit from the 
interrnunicipal Host Site agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the intermunicipal agreement, the Village will pay the County 
two (2) installments of $800 each per member for the services of three (3) RCSC members in an 
amount not to exceed $4,800 for the period June 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016; and 



WHEREAS, On August 24, 2016, the Board of the Village of Haverstraw approved the 
intermunicipal Host Site agreement by it's Resolution 57 - 20 16; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, considered 
and approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves the intermunicipal 
Host Site agreement between the ·County of Rockland and the Village of Haverstraw (the 
"Village"), pursuant to'which the Village Will pay the County an amount not to exceed $4,800 for 
the services of three (3) RCSC members for the period June 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016; 
and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute the 
iritermunicipal Host Site agreement on behalf of the County. 

DB:dc. 
2016-03061 
8-31-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. fJ !JOb 

WITH RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING THE AGREEMENT WITH 

ROCKLAND IRISH AMERICAN CULTURAL CENTER 
TO PROVIDE PROGRAMS FOR SENIOR CITIZENS 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $13,747 
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 

WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) 
ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR OPTION TERMS 

AND TRANSFERRING THE FUNDS NECESSARY TO PAY FOR THIS AGREEMENT 
FROM DEPARTMENT NO. 7568 TO DEPARTMENT NO. 6772 

[OFFICE FOR THE AGING] 
($13,747) 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 548 of2015, the Legislature of Rockland County adopted 
the annual budget for the County of Rockland for fiscal year 2016 in which funds in the amount 
of $13,747 were appropriated for Rockland Irish American Cultural Center With offices at 284 
Convent Road, Blauvelt, New York 10913, as a contract agency; and 

WHEREAS, It is the intent of the Legislature, expressed through its amendments to the 
armual budget for fiscal year 2016, that these funds be used to contract with Rockland Irish 
American Cultural Center; and 

WHEREAS, The purpose of the agreement with Rockland hish American Cultural Center 
will be to provide programs for senior citizens in Rockland County, and it will be in the amount 
of $13,747 for the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, with the option to 
renew for two (2) additional one (1) year option terms; and 

WHEREAS, These services fall within the scope and mission of the Office for the Aging; 
and 

WHEREAS, To fully integrate these services into the Office for the Aging, it is appropriate 
for the Departrnentto work with the contract agency in the performance of the agency's obligations 
under the contract; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of the Office for the Aging has requested that the agreement 
with Rockland Irish American Cultural Center be approved and that the funds appropriated for this 
contract agency be transferred from Department No. 7568 to Department No. 6772; and · 



WHEREAS, Once the funds are transferred, sufficient funding for this agreement will be 
available in the 2016 Budget of the Office for the Aging, Department No. 6772, Object of Expense 
E5010; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, considered 
and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves the execution of 
the agreement with Rockland Irish American Cultural Center, 284 Convent Road, Blauvelt, New 
York, to provide programs for senior citizens, in the amount of$13,747 for the period from January 
1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year 
option terms, and hereby authorizes the transfer of funds necessary to pay for this agreement from 
Department No. 7568 to Department No. 6772; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Commissioner of Finance is hereby authorized to increase (and 
decrease) the following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

GENERAL FUND 

Increase Approp. Acct.: 
A-OFA-6772-E5010 Office for Aging- Contract Agency $13,747 

Decrease Aoorop. Acct.: 
A-CA-7568-E501 0 Rockland Irish American Cultural Center $13,747 

and be it further 

RESOLVED, That once the funds are transferred, sufficient funding for this agreement 
will be available in the 2016 Budget of the Office for the Aging, Department No. 6772, Object of 
Expense E5010. 

VWJ:dc 
2016-03099 
9-6-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. ~ 3'17 
RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

ESTABLISHING ONE POSITION AND 
ABOLISHING ONE POSITION IN THE 

DEPARTMENT OF LAW 

WHEREAS, The County Attorney has requested the establishment of one position and 
the concurrent abolishment of one position in the Department of Law; and 

WHEREAS, The Department of Personnel has reviewed a job description for one 
position and has made an appropriate civil service classification; and 

WHEREAS, The County Attorney is requesting no additional funds to establish this 
position; and 

WHEREAS, The Connnittee of the Legislature has met, considered 
and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That one position of Legal Transcriber, position control# (SG 
9- $39,033 - $46,661) be hereby established in the Department of Law- 1420; and 

RESOLVED, That one position of Senior Typist, position control #8474 (SG 8 - $37,424 
- $44,592) be hereby concurrently abolished. 

VWJ:dc 
2016-02910 
8-29-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. 9 J.(J'/ 
RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

ESTABLISHING TWO RELIEF POSITIONS 
IN THE BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

WHEREAS, The Commissioners of Elections have requested the establishment of 
two relief positions; and 

WHEREAS, The Department of Personnel has reviewed job descriptions for these 
two relief positions and has made appropriate civil service classifications; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Elections is requesting no additional funds to establish 
these positions; and · 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, 
considered and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the following two relief positions be hereby established in the 
Board of Elections- 1450, effective January 1, 2017: 

TITLE SALARY 

Clerk-Typist (BOE) (Relief) (SG 5 - $32,617 - $39,033) 

Clerk-Typist (BOE) (Relief) (SG 5 - $32,617 - $39,033) 

VWJ:dc 
2016-02911 
8-17-16 

POSITION 



Introduced by: 

CJ OJ ~l /.} 17 . ReferralNo. 3/'l~ 
RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

ESTABLISHING THREE RELIEF POSITIONS 
IN THE ROCKLAND COUNTY YOUTH BUREAU 

WHEREAS, The Assistant Director, Youth Bureau has requested the establishment 
of three relief positions; and 

WHEREAS, The Department of Personnel has reviewed job descriptions for three 
relief positions; and 

WHEREAS, The Assistant Director, Youth Bureau is requesting no additional 
funds to establish these positions; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, 
considered and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the following three relief positions be hereby established in the 
Rockland County Youth Bureau -1250, effective January 1, 2017: 

TITLE SALARY 

Youth Employment Aide (Relief) (SG 6 - $34,101 - $40,809) 

Employment Assistant I (Relief) (SG 11 - $42,690- $51,239) 

Job Developer I (Relief) (SG 16- $53,684- $64,217) 

VWJ:dc 
2016-02935 
8-19-16 

POSITION# 



Introduced by: Referral No. 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
ESTABLISHING AND ABOLISHING POSITIONS 
IN THE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 

WHEREAS, The Commissioner of Mental Health has completed a careful review of his 
operations in the context ofprogrannnatic changes and New York State requirements regarding 
mental health fwictions and has determined that the establishment and abolishment of positions is 
necessary to ensure compliance with such New York State requirements and the effective 
provision of clinical services; and 

WHEREAS, The Department of Personnel has reviewed job descriptions for new positions 
and has made appropriate civil service classifications; and 

WHEREAS, The Commissioner of Mental Health is requesting no additional funds to 
establish these new positions as the establishment of the positions will result in a salary savings; 
and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, considered 
and approved this resolution; now therefore be it · 

RESOLVED, That the following positions be hereby established in the Department of 
Mental Health- 4301, effective January 1, 2017: 

TITLE 

Coordinator of Substance 
Abuse Services 

Psychiatric Social Worker I 
(Spanish Speaking) 

Psychiatrist II (Clinic) 
(Spanish Speaking)(l/2) 

Registered Nurse (Psychiatric) 

; and be it further . 

SALARY 

(Band 5 - $74,488 - $95,935) 

(SG 18-$58,742- $70,613) 

(Group D, Doctor's Conncil 
Base salary- $161,842) 

(SG 57B- $58,893- $67,515) 

POSITION# 



RESOLVED, That the following positions be hereby concurrently abolished in the 
Department of Mental Health- 4301, effective January 1, 2017: 

TITLE 

Director, Alcohol and Substance 
Abuse Services (MH) 

Psychiatric Social Worker II 

Child Psychiatrist II 

Psychiatrist I (Clinic) 
(Spanish-Speaking)(1/2) 

Psychiatrist I (pt) 

Registered Nurse (Institutional) 

; and be it further 

SALARY 

(Band 6- $87,345- $112,555) 

(SG 22 - $70,613 - $85, 117) 

(Group D, Doctor's Council 
Base salary- $161,842) 

(GroupE, Doctor's Council 
Base salary- $152,521) 

(GroupE, Doctor's Council 
Base salary- $152,521) 

(SG 57B- $58,893- $67,515) 

POSITION# 

6531 

8989 

9176 

9209 

3947C 

9186 

RESOLVED, That, effective January 1, 2017, the title Registered Nurse (Psychiatric) shall 
be allocated to salary grade 57B ($58,893 - $67,515), as provided in the collective bargaining 
agreement between the Civil Service Employees Association (CSEA) and the Cotinty ofRockland; 
and be it further 

RESOLVED, That effective January I, 2017, the title Coordinator of Substance Abuse 
Services shall be allocated to management band 5 ($74,488- $95,935), as provided in the collective 
bargaining agreement between the Rockland Association of Management (R.A.M.) and the County 
of Rockland. 

VWJ:dc 
2016-02915 
8-19-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
ESTABLISHING THREE POSITIONS 
AND ABOLISHING TWO POSITIONS 

IN THE OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
(NO LOCAL SHARE) 

3911 

WHEREAS, The Director, Conununity Development has carefully reviewed her office's 
operations and govenunental priorities in the context of program requirements of the United States 
Department ofUrban and Housing Development (HUD) and has determined that the abolishment and 
establishment of positions is necessary to effectively meet HUD requirements; and 

WHEREAS, The Department of Personnel has reviewed job descriptions for three positions 
and has made appropriate civil service classifications; and 

WHEREAS, No additional funding is being requested as said new positions are fully funded 
byHUD; and 

WHEREAS, The Budget and Finance Conunittee of the Rockland County Legislature has 
met, considered, and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That one position of Confidential Assistant to the Director, Community 
Development, position no. (non-union management Compensation Group 1; $61,530-
$91,606) be hereby established in the Office ofConununity Development- 1260; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that one position of Conununity Builder (Conununity Development) (Spanish-
Speaking), position no. (SG 15-$51,436- $61,800) be hereby established in the Office of 
Conununity Development- 1260; and be it further 

· RESOLVED, That one position of Conununity Builder (Community Development), position 
no. (SG 15; $51,436 - $61,800) be hereby established in the Office of Community 
Development - 1260; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that one position of Assistant to the Director (Conununity. Development), 
position control #8761 (RAM band 2- $56,371 - $72,503) be hereby concurrently abolished; and be 
it further 

RESOLVED, That one position of Home Program Coordinator, position control no. 7490 be 
hereby concurrently abolished, said abolishment to be effective thirty (30) days from the adoption of 
this resolution; and be it further 



RESOLVED, That the title Confidential Assistant to the Director, Community Development 
be hereby allocated to non-union management Compensation Group I ($61,530- $91,606), in 
accordance with Resolution 381 of2015. 

GENERAL(A)FUND 

Increase Appropriation Accts: 

A-CD-1260-EllOO Salaries Conf. Asst. to Dir. CD 

A-CD-1260-E11 00 Salaries Community Builder Sp Spkg 

A-CD-1260-E1100 Salaries Community Builder 

A-CD-1260-E1930 FICA 

A-CD-1260-E1980 MTA 

Total 

Decrease Appropriation Accts: 

A-CD-1260-E1100 Salaries Position #7490 

A-CD-1260-E1100 Salaries Position #8761 

A-CD-1260-E1930 FICA 

A-CD-1260-E1980 MTA 

Total 

Increase Est. Revenue Accts: 

A-CD-1260-Community Development 

Total 

TH:dc 
2016-02812 
9-2-16 

R4988 Sect. 8 

$ 61,530 

$ 53,890 

$ 51,436 

$ 12,765 

$570 

$180,191 

$ 87,582 

$77,494 

$ 12,630 

$560 

$178,266 

$ 1,925 

$1,925 

I 
! 



Introduced by: ReferralNo. ss~ct 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
ESTABLISHING AND ABOLISHING POSITIONS 
AND IMPLEMENTING THE REALLOCATIONS 

OF TWO POSITIONS 
IN THE DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL 

WHEREAS, The Commissioner of Personnel has completed a careful review of her 
operations in the context of continuing workforce reductions and technological changes, and has 
determined that restructuring staff is necessary to enhance flexibility and efficiency and ensure 
compliance with New York State Civil Service Law in a cost effective manner; and 

WHEREAS, The Commissioner of Personnel has requested the establishment and 
abolishment of positions in order to implement said restructuring; and 

WHEREAS, A review of the appropriate compensation level for the title Human 
Resources Coordinator, considering the effects of the Department of Personnel's restructuring 
plan, has been completed in accordance with the County's formal management job evaluation 
system that provides a means for determining appropriate compensation levels in accordance 
with professionally-derived criteria; and 

WHEREAS, Such review has resulted in the determination that the appropriate 
compensation level for the title Human Resources Coordinator is RAM. management band 5; 
and 

WHEREAS, A review of the appropriate compensation level for the title Confidential 
Assistant to the Commissioner of Personnel has also been completed in the context of the 
restructuring plan and in accordance with the criteria of the Non-Union Management 
Compensation Policy, as adopted by Resolution No. 381 of2015; and 

WHEREAS, Such review has resulted in the determination that the appropriate 
compensation level for the title Confidential Assistant to the Commissioner of Personnel is Non
Union Management Compensation Group 2; and 

I 
I 

I 



WHEREAS, the Department of Personnel has reviewed job descriptions for new 
positions and has made appropriate civil service classifications; and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Personnel is requesting no additional funds to establish 
these new positions as the establishment and abolishment of positions will result in salary 
savings; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, considered 
and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that the following positions be hereby established in the Department of 
Personnel- 1430; effective January 1, 2017: 

TITLE 

Personnel Projects Assistant I 
Human Resources Coordinator (L TFT) 

; and be it further 

SALARY 

(SG 12- $44,592 - $53,684) , 
(Band 5 - $74,488 - $95,935) r 

POSITION# 

RESOLVED, that the following positions be hereby concurrently abolished in the 
Department of Personnel- 1430, effective January 1, 2017: 

TITLE 

Personnel Administrator II 
Personnel Clerk 
MIS Technician III 

; and be it further 

SALARY 

(Band 6- $87,345- $112,555) " 
(SG 12 - $44,592 - $53,684)" 
(SG 23 - $73,978- $89,339) 

POSITION# 

8478 
9146 
8635 

RESOLVED, That, effective January 1, 2017, the title Human Resources Coordinator 
shall be allocated downward from management band 7 ($99,693 - $128,529) to management 
band 5 ($74,488 - $95,935), as provided in the collective bargaining agreement between the 
Rockland Association of Management and the County of Rockland; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That, effective January 1, 2017, the title Confidential Assistant to the 
Commissioner of Personnel shall be allocated from Non-Union Management Compensation 
Group 1 ($61,530 - $91,606) to Non-Union Management Compensation Group 2 ($73,774 -
$109,972), pursuant to Resolution No. 381 of2015; and be it further 



RESOLVED, That, effective January 1, 2017, the funding for the relief position 
Personnel Technician (Relief), Position Control No. 9150Z, shall be reduced to $30,000 per 

annum. 

LHRIVWJ:dc 
2016-02864 
8-17-16 

i 
. I 

! 


